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deciding whether to open attachments or click on provided links.

From: Goff, Stephen
To: Grange, Juliane (she/her/hers)
Cc: Attwood, Deborah; Horine, Paige; Gotz, Nicholas; Kendall, Julie; Ulfig, Joseph
Subject: RE: Filed and Served Consent Agreement and Final Order for W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn (East Chicago, Indiana);

Docket number: EPCRA-05-2024-0006
Date: Thursday, May 9, 2024 4:41:08 PM
Attachments: EPCRA-05-2024-0006_CoverLetter_WRGraceCoConn_EastChicagoIndiana.pdf

EPCRA-05-2024-0006_CAFO_WRGraceCoConn_EastChicagoIndiana_11PGS.pdf
EPCRA-05-2024-0006_CertificateOfService_WRGraceCoConn_EastChicagoIndiana.pdf
USEPA_AcceptedPaymentMethods.pdf

Dear Ms. Grange,
 
This is confirmation that I have received your emails.
 
Regards,
 
Stephen G. Goff  | VP – Regional Manufacturing, Americas Region 1
W. R. Grace & Co., 7500 Grace Drive Columbia, MD, 21044, USA  |  T +1 410.531.4221  |  M +1 346.221.5646
  |  Stephen.Goff@grace.com

THIS E-MAIL AND ANY ATTACHED FILES ARE CONFIDENTIAL AND MAY BE LEGALLY PRIVILEGED. If you are not the addressee,
any disclosure, reproduction, copying, distribution, or use of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this
transmission in error please notify the sender immediately and then delete this e-mail.
​
Our privacy policy can be found here ​. At any time, you may request to change your data protection preferences or remove your data by
clicking here ​. Unsubscribe ​
 

From: Grange, Juliane (she/her/hers) <Grange.Juliane@epa.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 3:30 PM
To: Goff, Stephen <Stephen.goff@grace.com>
Subject: [INTERNET] FW: Filed and Served Consent Agreement and Final Order for W.R. Grace & Co.-
Conn (East Chicago, Indiana); Docket number: EPCRA-05-2024-0006
 
This message is from an external source. Please use caution when opening links and
attachments.

Dear Mr. Goff,
 
There was a typo in the body of the email I sent earlier. The docket number is EPCRA-05-2024-0006.
 
My apologies,
Juliane
 
Juliane Grange
Regional Hearing Clerk
United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
Phone 312-886-9868
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May 9, 2024 
 


VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
DELIVERY RECEIPT REQUESTED 
 
Mr. Stephen Goff  
Vice President, Regional Manufacturing, Americas North  
W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn   
5215 Kennedy Ave 
East Chicago, Indiana 46312-3805  
Stephen.goff@grace.com  
 
Re: In the Matter of W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn    


Docket No.: EPCRA-05-2024-0006 
 
Dear Mr. Goff: 


Attached, please find a signed, fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in 
resolution of the above case. The CAFO was filed on May 9. 2024, with the Regional Hearing Clerk. 
  
Under paragraph 25 of the CAFO, you must pay the civil penalty within 30 days of the effective date of 
the CAFO. Your electronic funds transfer must display the case docket number, as provided above. 
Thank you for your cooperation in resolving this matter. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns regarding this matter, please contact Ms. Carol Staniec at 
staniec.carol@epa.gov or (312) 886-1436.  
 


Sincerely, 


 
 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 5 


 
Enclosure 
 
cc:  Julie Kendall, EHS Manager, Julie.kendall@grace.com 


R5LECAB@epa.gov 
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 


REGION 5 


 


 


In the Matter of:    )    Docket No. EPCRA-05-2024-0006 


      ) 


W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn    )    Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty 


East Chicago, Indiana    )    Under Section 325(c) of the Emergency 


      )    Planning and Community Right-to-Know 


 Respondent.    )    Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c) 


      ) 


 


 


Consent Agreement and Final Order 


 


1. This is an administrative action commenced and concluded under Section 325(c) of 


the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 (“EPCRA”), 42 U.S.C. 


§ 11045(c), and Sections 22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice 


Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or 


Suspension of Permits (“Consolidated Rules”), as codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22. 


2. The Complainant is the Director of the Enforcement and Compliance Assurance 


Division, United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5. 


3. Respondent is W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn., a corporation doing business in the State of 


Indiana. 


4. Where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of action before the filing of a 


complaint, the administrative action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by the 


issuance of a consent agreement and final order (“CAFO”).  40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b). 


5. The parties agree that settling this action without the filing of a complaint or the 


adjudication of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest. 


6. Respondent consents to the assessment of the civil penalty specified in this CAFO, 
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and to the terms of this CAFO. 


Jurisdiction and Waiver of Right to Hearing 


7. Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in this CAFO and neither admits 


nor denies the factual allegations in this CAFO. 


8. Respondent waives its right to request a hearing as provided at 40 C.F.R. § 22.15(c), 


any right to contest the allegations in this CAFO, and its right to appeal this CAFO. 


9. Respondent certifies that it is complying with Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 


§ 11023. 


Statutory and Regulatory Background 


10. Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.22, 372.23, and 


372.30 require the owner or operator of a facility that has 10 or more full-time employees; is 


covered by certain Standard Industrial Classification (“SIC”) codes and North American Industry 


Classification System (“NAICS”) codes; meets one of the criteria set forth in 40 C.F.R. 


§ 372.22(b)(1)-(3); and manufactured, processed or otherwise used a toxic chemical in an 


amount exceeding an applicable threshold quantity of that chemical listed under Section 313(f) 


of EPCRA and  40 C.F.R. § 372.25 during the calendar year, to complete and submit a toxic 


chemical release inventory form (“Form R”) to the Administrator of the EPA and to the state in 


which the subject facility is located by July 1 for each toxic chemical manufactured, processed or 


otherwise used in quantities exceeding the established threshold during the preceding calendar 


year. 


11. As set forth in Section 313(f) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(f), and 40 C.F.R. 


§ 372.25, except as provided in 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.27 and 372.28, the reporting threshold amount 


for a toxic chemical manufactured or processed at a facility is 25,000 pounds for calendar years 
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including and subsequent to 1989. The reporting threshold for a toxic chemical otherwise used at 


a facility is 10,000 pounds for calendar years including and subsequent to 1987. 


12. Section 325(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c), authorizes the Administrator of 


EPA to assess a civil penalty of up to $25,000 per day for each violation of Section 313 of 


EPCRA.  The Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 2461 note 


(1990), as amended by the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C. § 3701 note 


(1996), required federal agencies to issue regulations adjusting for inflation the maximum civil 


penalties that may be assessed pursuant to each agency’s statutes.  EPA may assess a civil 


penalty of up to $ 69,733 per day for each violation of Section 313 of EPCRA that occurred after 


November 2, 2015, where penalties are assessed on or after December 27, 2023, pursuant to 


Section 325(c)(1) and (3) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(c)(1) and (3), and 40 C.F.R. Part 19. 


Factual Allegations and Alleged Violations 


13. Respondent is a “person” as that term is defined at Section 329(7) of EPCRA, 


42 U.S.C. § 11049(7). 


14. At all times relevant to this CAFO, Respondent was an owner or operator of the 


facility located at 5215 Kennedy Avenue, East Chicago, Indiana (“facility”). 


15. At all times relevant to this CAFO, Respondent had “10 or more full-time 


employees,” as defined at 40 C.F.R. § 372.3, and was an employer at the facility. 


16. Respondent’s facility consists of buildings, equipment, structures and other 


stationary items which are located on a single site or on contiguous or adjacent sites and which 


are owned or operated by the same person. 


17. Respondent’s facility is a “facility” as that term is defined at Section 329(4) of 


EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4). 
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18. The facility has a SIC code of 2819, Inorganic Chemical manufacturing, and a 


NAICS code of 325180, Other Basic Inorganic Chemical Manufacturing, both codes, as defined 


at Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. § 372.22 and 372.23. 


 


Count 1 


19. During calendar year 2021, Respondent’s facility processed, as that term is defined 


at 40 C.F.R.§ 372.3, Ethylene Glycol, CAS No. 107-21-1 listed under 40 C.F.R. § 372.65, in the 


amount of 27,344 pounds which is greater than 25,000 lbs., the threshold for reporting, as set 


forth in Section 313(f) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(f), and 40 C.F.R. § 372.25.  


20. Respondent was required to submit to the Administrator of EPA and to Indiana a 


Form R for Ethylene Glycol for calendar year 2021 by July 1, 2022. 


21. Respondent did not submit to the Administrator of EPA and to Indiana a Form R for 


Ethylene Glycol for calendar year 2021 by July 1, 2022.  


22. Respondent submitted Form R for Ethylene Glycol to the Administrator of EPA and 


to Indiana on May 2, 2023 for calendar year 2021.  


23. Respondent’s failure to submit timely a Form R for Ethylene Glycol to the 


Administrator of EPA and to Indiana for calendar year 2021 violated Section 313 of EPCRA, 


42 U.S.C. § 11023, and 40 C.F.R. § 372.30. 


Civil Penalty 


24. Pursuant to Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045, Complainant determined 


that an appropriate civil penalty to settle this action is $20,133.  In determining the penalty 


amount, Complainant considered the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the violations, 


and with respect to Respondent, its ability to pay, prior history of violations, economic benefit or 
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savings resulting from the violations, and any other matters as justice may require.  Complainant 


also considered EPA’s Enforcement Response Policy for Section 313 of the Emergency Planning 


and Community Right-to-Know Act (1986) and Section 6607 of the Pollution Prevention Act 


(1990) (amended) (April 12, 2001). 


25. Respondent agrees to pay a civil penalty in the amount of $20,133 (“Assessed 


Penalty”) within thirty (30) days after the Final Order ratifying this Agreement is filed with 


Regional Hearing Clerk (“Filing Date”). 


26. Respondent shall pay the Assessed Penalty and any interest, fees, and any other 


charges due using any method, or combination of appropriate methods, as provided on the EPA 


website: https://www.epa.gov/financial/makepayment. For additional instructions, see: 


https://www.epa.gov/financial/additional-instructions-making-payments-epa.  


27. When making a payment, Respondent shall: 


a. Identify every payment with Respondent’s name and the docket number of this 


agreement: EPCRA-05-2024-0006. 


b. Concurrently with any payment or within 24 hours of any payment, Respondent 


shall serve proof of such payment to the following person(s): 


 


Regional Hearing Clerk 


U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 


77 West Jackson Boulevard (E-19J) 


Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590 


 


Carol Staniec 


Pesticides and Toxics Compliance Section 


U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 


77 West Jackson Boulevard 


Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590 


 


David Duckett (C-14J) 


Assistant Regional Counsel 



https://www.epa.gov/financial/makepayment
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Office of Regional Counsel 


U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 


77 West Jackson Boulevard 


Chicago, Illinois 60604-3590 


 


and 


 


U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 


Cincinnati Finance Center 


Via electronic mail to: 


CINWD_AcctsReceivable@epa.gov 


 


“Proof of payment” means, as applicable, a copy of the check, 


confirmation of credit card or debit card payment, or confirmation of wire 


or automated clearinghouse transfer, and any other information required to 


demonstrate that payment has been made according to EPA requirements, 


in the amount due, and identified with the appropriate docket number and 


Respondent’s name. 


   


 


28. Interest, Charges, and Penalties on Late Payments. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, 31 


C.F.R. § 901.9, and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11, if Respondent fails to timely pay the full amount of the 


Assessed Penalty per this Agreement, EPA is authorized to recover, in addition to the unpaid 


amount of the Assessed Penalty, the following amounts. 


a. Interest. Interest begins to accrue from the Filing Date. If the Assessed Penalty 


is paid in full within thirty (30) days, interest accrued is waived. If the Assessed 


Penalty is not paid in fill within thirty (30) days, interest will continue to accrue 


until any unpaid portion of the Assessed Penalty as well as any interest, 


penalties, and other charges are paid in full. To protect the interests of the 


United States the rate of interest is set at the IRS standard underpayment rate, 


any lower rate would fail to provide Respondent adequate incentive for timely 


payment. 



mailto:CINWD_AcctsReceivable@epa.gov
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b. Handling Charges. Respondent will be assessed monthly a charge to cover 


EPA’s costs of processing and handling overdue debts. If Respondent fails to 


pay the Assessed Penalty in accordance with this Agreement, EPA will assess a 


charge to cover the costs of handling any unpaid amounts for the first thirty 


(30) day period after the Filing Date. Additional handling charged will be 


assessed every thirty (30) days, or any portion thereof, until the unpaid portion 


of the Assessed Penalty as well as any accrued interest, penalties, and other 


charges are paid in full. 


c. Late Payment Penalty. A late penalty payment of six percent (6%) per annum, 


will be assessed monthly on all debts, including any unpaid portion of the 


Assessed Penalty, interest, penalties, and other charges, that remain delinquent 


more then ninety (90) days. Any such amounts will accrue from the Filing Date. 


29. Late Penalty Actions. In addition to the amounts described in the prior Paragraph, if 


Respondent fails to timely pay any portion of the Assessed Penalty, interest, or other charges and 


penalties per this Agreement, EPA may take additional actions. Such actions EPA may take 


include, but are not limited to, the following. 


a. Refer the debt to a credit reporting agency or a collection agency, per 40 C.F.R. 


§ § 13.13 and 13.14. 


b. Collect the debt by administrative offset (i.e., the withholding of money 


payable by the United States government to, or held by the United States 


government for, a person to satisfy the debt the person owes the United States 


government), which includes, but is not limited to, referral to the Internal 
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Revenue Service for offset against income tax refunds, per 40 C.F.R. Part 13, 


Subparts C and H. 


c. Suspend of revoke Respondent’s licenses or other privileges, or suspend or 


disqualify Respondent from doing business with EPA or engaging in programs 


EPA sponsors or funds, per 40 C.F.R. § 13.17. 


d. Refer this matter to the United States Department of Justice for litigation and 


collection, per 40 C.F.R. § 13.33. 


30. Allocation of Payments. Pursuant to 31 C.F.R. § 901.9(f) and 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(d), 


a partial payment of debt will be applied first to outstanding handling charges, second to late 


penalty charges, third to accrued interest, and last to the principal that is the outstanding 


Assessed Penalty amount. 


31. Tax Treatment of Penalties. Penalties, interest, and other charges paid pursuant to 


this Agreement shall not be deductible for purposes of federal taxes.  


General Provisions 


32. The parties consent to service of this CAFO by e-mail at the following valid e-mail 


addresses: duckett.david@epa.gov (for Complainant), and stephen.goff@grace.com (for 


Respondent).  Respondent understands that the CAFO will become publicly available upon 


filing. 


33.  Respondent’s full compliance with this CAFO shall only resolve Respondent’s 


liability for federal administrative civil penalties under Section 325(c)(1) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 


§ 11045(c)(1), for the violations alleged in this CAFO. 


34. This CAFO does not affect the rights of EPA or the United States to pursue 


appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of law. 
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35. This CAFO does not affect Respondent’s responsibility to comply with EPCRA and 


other applicable federal, state and local laws. 


36. This CAFO is a “final order” for purposes of EPA’s Enforcement Response Policy 


for Section 313 of EPCRA. 


37. The terms of this CAFO bind Respondent, its successors and assigns. 


38. Each person signing this agreement certifies that he or she has the authority to sign 


for the party whom he or she represents and to bind that party to its terms. 


39. Each party agrees to bear its own costs and attorney’s fees in this action. 


40. This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. 


 
 
W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn., Respondent 
 
 
 
 
             
Date Stephen Goff 


Vice President, Regional Manufacturing, Americas North 
      W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn  
      7500 Grace Drive 
      Columbia, MD 21044 
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In the Matter of: 


W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn  


Docket No.: EPCRA-05-2024-0006 
 


 


United States Environmental Protection Agency, Complainant 


 


 


 


 


       


Michael D. Harris 


Director 


Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division 
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In the Matter of: 


W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn  


Docket No.: EPCRA-05-2024-0006 


 


Final Order 
 


 This Consent Agreement and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become 


effective immediately upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk.  This Final Order concludes 


this proceeding pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18 and 22.31.  IT IS SO ORDERED. 


 


 


 


       


Ann L. Coyle 


Regional Judicial Officer 


United States Environmental Protection Agency 


Region 5 
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Consent Agreement and Final Order 
In the Matter of W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn    
Docket Number: EPCRA-05-2024-0006 
 


CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 
I certify that I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order, 
docket number EPCRA-05-2024-0006, which was filed on May 9, 2024, in the following manner to the 
following addressees: 
 
    
Copy by E-mail to    Mr. Stephen Goff 
Respondent:    Vice President, Regional Manufacturing, Americas North 


W. R. Grace & Co.-Conn   
Stephen.goff@grace.com 
 
 


Copy by E-mail to Attorney   Ms. Deborah Attwood 
for Respondent:   Senior Counsel 
     W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn  
     Deborah.attwood@grace.com 
  


 
Copy by E-mail to   Mr. David Duckett   
Attorney for Complainant:     duckett.david@epa.gov 
 


 
 


Copy by E-mail to   Ms. Ann Coyle 
Regional Judicial Officer:  coyle.ann@epa.gov 
  


 
      
 
 
 
Juliane Grange 
Regional Hearing Clerk  
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
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Accepted Payment Methods for United States Environmental Protection Agency 


Address format for standard delivery: 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
P.O. Box 979078 
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000 


Address format for signed receipt confirmation (FedEx, DHL, UPS, USPS certified, registered, 
etc): 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Government Lockbox 979078 
3180 Rider Trail S. 
Earth City, MO 63045 
 
Automated Clearinghouse payments (ACH) 
US Treasury REX/Cashlink ACH Receiver 
ABA: 051036706 
Account Number: 310006, Environmental Protection Agency 
CTX Format Transaction Code 22 – checking 
5700 Rivertech Court Riverdale, MD 20737 
 
Wire Transfers 
ABA: 021030004 
Account Number: 68010727 
SWIFT address: FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Street New York, NY 10045 
Beneficiary: US Environmental Protection Agency 
 
Pay.gov (Credit Card, Debit Card, and bank draft) 


1. You DO NOT need a username and password or account. 
2. Enter SFO 1.1 in the form search box on the top left side of the screen.   
3. Open the form and follow the on-screen instructions. 
4. Select your type of payment from the "Type of Payment" drop down menu. 
5. Based on your selection, the corresponding line will open and no longer be shaded gray. 
6. Enter the docket number, invoice number or other corresponding information into the field. 


Any questions please contact Milton Wise (wise.milton@epa.gov). 
 
These instructions are valid until 09/30/2024.  



mailto:wise.milton@epa.gov





From: r5hearingclerk 
Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 1:44 PM
To: Stephen.goff@grace.com; Deborah.attwood@grace.com; Coyle, Ann <coyle.ann@epa.gov>;
Duckett, David <Duckett.David@epa.gov>
Cc: Julie.kendall@grace.com; CINWD AcctsReceivable <CINWD_AcctsReceivable@epa.gov>; Staniec,
Carol <staniec.carol@epa.gov>; Calvo, Estrella <calvo.estrella@epa.gov>; Paulin, Jamie
<paulin.jamie@epa.gov>; Morris, Julie <morris.julie@epa.gov>; R5LECAB <R5LECAB@epa.gov>;
Persoon, Carolyn <persoon.carolyn@epa.gov>; Martinez, Isidra <Martinez.Isidra@epa.gov>; Hill,
Shatavia <Hill.Shatavia@epa.gov>; Grange, Juliane (she/her/hers) <Grange.Juliane@epa.gov>
Subject: Filed and Served Consent Agreement and Final Order for W.R. Grace & Co.-Conn (East
Chicago, Indiana); Docket number: EPCRA-05-2024-0006
 
Dear Mr. Goff,
 
The attached Consent Agreement and Final Order, docket number CAA-05-2024-0029, was filed
today with the Regional Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA Region 5.  Also attached are a cover letter;
Certificate of Service; and payment instructions developed by EPA’s Cincinnati Finance Center that
are consistent with the EPA website link in the CAFO.
 
Please reply to this email to confirm receipt.
 
Thank you,
Juliane Grange
 
Juliane Grange
Regional Hearing Clerk
United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
Planning and Administrative Staff
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division
Phone 312-886-9868
Email grange.juliane@epa.gov
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